
 

 

 
 

 
 

A G E N D A 
 
 

JOINT TRANSPORTATION BOARD 
 

Monday 15 October 2018 at 6.00 pm 
Council Chamber, Town Hall, Royal Tunbridge Wells, TN1 1RS 

 
 

 

Borough Members:  Councillors Stanyer (Chairman), Backhouse, Dr Hall, Lidstone, 
Simmons and Woodward 

County Members:  Councillors Barrington-King (Vice-Chairman), Hamilton, Holden, 
McInroy, Oakford and Rankin 

Parish Member Councillor Mackonochie 

Quorum: 4 Members (2 KCC members and 2 TWBC members) 

 
 

1   Apologies 
To receive any apologies for absence. 

 

2   Declarations of Interest 
To receive any declarations of interest by Members in items on 
the agenda. For any advice on declarations of interest, please 
contact the Monitoring Officer before the meeting. 

 

3   Notification of Visiting Members wishing to speak 
To note any members of the Council wishing to speak, of which 
due notice has been given in accordance with Council Meeting 
Procedure Rule 18, and which items they wish to speak on. 

 

4   Minutes of the meeting dated 16 July 2018 
To approve the minutes of a previous meeting as a correct record. 
The only issue relating to the minutes that can be discussed is 
their accuracy. 

(Pages 5 - 12) 

5   Update Report (Pages 13 - 14) 

 
 
 

Public Document Pack

Page 1



 
 

 

6   Resident Parking Restrictions - Grove Hill Road Area, Royal 
Tunbridge Wells 

(Pages 15 - 22) 

7   Highway Works Programme (Pages 23 - 42) 

8   Topics for Future Meetings 
To agree any topics for future meetings, of which prior notice 
must be sent to the Chairman and Democratic Services Officer no 
later than 4pm on the working day before the meeting. There can 
not be any substantive debate, discussion or any decision on any 
topics raised, except to agree whether the topic may come 
forward in future. 

(Pages 43 - 44) 

9   Date of Next Meeting 
To note that the next scheduled meeting will be held on Monday 
21 January 2019 at 6.00pm. 

 

 

 
 
Mark O'Callaghan Town Hall 
Democratic Services Officer ROYAL TUNBRIDGE WELLS 
Tel:      (01892) 554219 Kent   TN1 1RS 
Email:  mark.o'callaghan@tunbridgewells.gov.uk  
 

 

mod.gov app – go paperless 
 

Easily download, annotate and keep all committee paperwork on your 

mobile device using the mod.gov app – all for free!. 
 

Visit   www.tunbridgewells.gov.uk/modgovapp   for details.  

Page 2

http://www.tunbridgewells.gov.uk/modgovapp
http://www.tunbridgewells.gov.uk/modgovapp
http://www.tunbridgewells.gov.uk/modgovapp


 
 

 
All visitors wishing to attend a public meeting at the Town Hall between the hours of 9.00am 
and 5.00pm should report to reception via the side entrance in Monson Way.  After 5pm, 
access will be via the front door on the corner of Crescent Road and Mount Pleasant Road, 
except for disabled access which will continue by use of an 'out of hours' button at the entrance 
in Monson Way 
 
Notes on Procedure 
 
(1)  A list of background papers appears at the end of each report, where appropriate, 

pursuant to the Local Government Act 1972, section 100D(i). 
 
(2) Members seeking factual information about agenda items are requested to contact the 

appropriate Service Manager prior to the meeting. 
 
(3) Members of the public and other stakeholders are required to register with the Democratic 

Services Officer if they wish to speak on an agenda item at a meeting.  Places are limited 
to a maximum of four speakers per item.  The deadline for registering to speak is 4.00 pm 
the last working day before the meeting.  Each speaker will be given a maximum of 3 
minutes to address the Committee. 

 
(4) All meetings are open to the public except where confidential or exempt information is 

being discussed. The agenda will identify whether any meeting or part of a meeting is not 
open to the public. Meeting rooms have a maximum public capacity as follows: 

 Council Chamber: 100, Committee Room A: 20, Committee Room B: 10. 
 
(5) Please note that the public proceedings of this meeting will be recorded and made 

available for playback on the Tunbridge Wells Borough Council website. Any other third 
party may also record or film meetings, unless exempt or confidential information is being 
considered, but are requested as a courtesy to others to give notice of this to the 
Democratic Services Officer before the meeting. The Council is not liable for any third 
party recordings. 

 
Further details are available on the website (www.tunbridgewells.gov.uk) or from 
Democratic Services. 

 

If you require this information in another format 
please contact us, call 01892 526121 or email 

committee@tunbridgewells.gov.uk 
 

Accessibility into and within the Town Hall – There is a wheelchair accessible lift 
by the main staircase, giving access to the first floor where the committee rooms are 
situated. There are a few steps leading to the Council Chamber itself but there is a 
platform chairlift in the foyer. 
 

Hearing Loop System –  The Council Chamber and Committee Rooms A and B 
have been equipped with hearing induction loop systems. The Council Chamber also 
has a fully equipped audio-visual system. 

 

Page 3

http://www.tunbridgewells.gov.uk/
mailto:committee@tunbridgewells.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



1 

TUNBRIDGE WELLS JOINT TRANSPORTATION BOARD 
 

Monday, 16 July 2018 
 
PRESENT:  Borough Councillors Stanyer (Chairman), Backhouse, Lidstone, 

Simmons and Woodward 
 County Councillors Barrington-King (Vice-Chairman), Hamilton, 

McInroy and Rankin 
 Parish Councillor Mackonochie 
 
Officers in Attendance: Damien Cock (Schemes Project Manager), Lisa Gillham 
(Tunbridge Wells District Manager), Vicki Hubert (Principal Transport Planner), Hilary Smith 
(Economic Development Manager), Jamie Watson (Traffic Schemes Team Leader) and 
Mark O'Callaghan (Democratic Services Officer) 
 
Other Members in Attendance: Councillors Mackonochie, McDermott, Moore and Scott 
 
APOLOGIES 
 
TB1/18 
 

Apologies were received from County Councillor Oakford and Councillor Dr Hall. 
 
County Councillor Holden was not present. 
 

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 
 
TB2/18 
 

There were no disclosable pecuniary or other significant interests declared at 
the meeting. 
 

NOTIFICATION OF VISITING MEMBERS WISHING TO SPEAK 
 
TB3/18 
 

Councillor Moore had registered to speak at minute TB5/18 and TB8/18. 
Councillor Scott had registered to speak at minute TB8/18. 
 
The Chairman noted that one member of the public had registered to speak 
at minute TB5/18 and TB6/18. 
 

MINUTES OF THE MEETING DATED 16 APRIL 2018 
 
TB4/18 
 

Members reviewed the minutes. No amendments were proposed. 
 
RESOLVED – That the minutes of the meeting dated 16 April 2018 be 
approved as a correct record. 
 

UPDATE REPORT 
 
TB5/18 
 

At a later point in the meeting but in respect of this item, Councillor Stanyer 
explained that the Update Report replaced the former Tracker and would 
bring forward only items where there was something substantive to report. 
 
The Board considered the report and comments were made in respect of the 
following items:  
 
1 – A26 Cycle Route 
Jamie Watson, Traffic Schemes Team Leader, KCC, introduced the report 
and clarified that phase 1 would commence and phase 3 would enter into the 
detailed design stage during the current financial year. In respect of parts of 

Page 5

Agenda Item 4



2 

phase 2, the previous 20mph zone and section of cycle route near Mabeldon 
would not be progressed. Consideration would be given to any new 
proposals. 
 
Paul Mason, for Tunbridge Wells Bicycle User Group (TWBUG), had 
registered to speak and commented that more people would cycle if 
conditions were safer. There was strong public support for the proposals. The 
A26 was a key part of the transport network, particularly for school children. 
TWBUG had identified several ‘quick wins’ and was prepared to work with 
KCC to make best use of the route. 
 
Councillor Moore, member for Park ward, had registered to speak, she was 
concerned that KCC proposed to not proceed with waiting restrictions and 
other important elements of the scheme due to a perceived lack of support. 
Several local policies emphasised active travel and there was strong public 
support for better infrastructure. School traffic was a major contributor to 
congestion and a lack of safety was the key barrier to more people cycling. 
Prioritising active travel would reduce congestion for all. 
 
Mr Watson advised that KCC would continue to work with TWBUG and local 
members to make improvements to the scheme where possible but were 
keen to avoid delays in implementing the agreed proposals. 
 
Councillor Backhouse endorsed Councillor Moore’s comments which echoed 
his experience in Sherwood ward. 
 
Councillor Lidstone welcomed progress but was disappointed that the 
opportunity to reduce traffic and pollution on a key route between two major 
conurbations was not being fully taken. It was not safe for cyclists to mix with 
40mph traffic at Mabeldon. A 20mph zone in Southborough would improve 
safety and could help re-establish it as a town centre rather than just a 
thoroughfare. To not implement waiting restrictions would force cyclists into a 
narrow lane of vehicles. The Traffic Regulation Order covering the waiting 
restrictions had been fully advertised and had been strongly supported by 
locals. KCC was failing in its ambition to be a pioneer for active travel. 
 
Mr Watson advised that the decision to retain the on-street parking was on 
the instruction of County Councillor Oakford. 
 
RESOLVED – That, subject to the comments made in the discussion, the 
report be noted. 
 

21ST CENTURY WAY CYCLE ROUTE CONSULTATION REPORT 
 
TB6/18 
 

Hilary Smith, Economic Development Manger, TWBC, introduced the report 
which included the following comments: 

 The 21st Century Way was an existing cycle route which linked: 
the key employment area of North Farm; new housing at Knights 
Wood; High Brooms Station; and Tunbridge Wells Town Centre. 

 The route was in need of upgrading and completion and was a key 
component of the Cycling Strategy. 

 Significant amounts of section 106 funding had been obtained to 
improve facilities for both cyclists and pedestrians. 

 A comprehensive consultation on the proposals had been held at 
the end of 2017 with 82 per cent of respondents either supporting 
or strongly supporting the proposals. 

Page 6

Agenda Item 4



3 

 Since the publication of the report, the statutory consultation on 
20mph schemes around Goods Station Road and Clifton Road 
had completed and no objections had been received. 

 Work was ongoing to improve the proposals further in response to 
encouraging suggestions made during the consultation. 

 Delivery was expected to start in Spring 2019. 
 

Paul Mason, for Tunbridge Wells Bicycle User Group (TWBUG), had 
registered to speak and welcomed the proposals. In additional to the express 
support of local residents, a recent online poll suggested that 80 per cent of 
respondents would cycle if it was safe to do so which demonstrated latent 
demand for improved infrastructure. TWBUG had identified several ‘quick 
wins’ and would be happy to work with officers to make best use of the route. 
 

The discussion included consideration of the following matters: 

 Wide support from members and appreciation for the work in 
preparing the proposals. 

 Inclusion of 20mph as part of the scheme was welcome. 

 The route’s proximity and additional cycle parking at High Brooms 
Station could help alleviate some of the commuter parking. 

 The route would be usable all-year-round due to new lighting for 
sections of the route through Home Farm Lane and Grosvenor 
and Hilbert Park. 

 Designers would work with Parks teams to ensure the surface of 
the route through the Park would be suitable for the variety of 
users and appropriate for the park setting. 

 Full segregation was not proposed for the Park as the paths were 
wide enough and already featured tactile surfacing to distinguish 
shared spaces. 

 20mph zones would be funded through section 106 money 
secured for pedestrian and cycling improvements. There was no 
opportunity for on-road segregation. 

 Speed surveys identified that average speeds were already low 
enough to justify the 20mph restrictions where off-road provision 
was not possible. 

 20mph zones would be identified by signs only but conditions 
would be monitored and further measures considered if 
necessary. 

 The strong local support for the proposals would suggest that the 
speed limits would be respected. 

 The KCC Local Transport Plan budget for the 20mph Public 
Health Initiative provided around £100k across the County for 
schemes where existing average speeds were below 24 mph. 
Kent Police had advised they would not enforce 20mph limits 
where there were no traffic calming measures so zones had to be 
self-enforcing. 

 

RESOLVED – That the Board support the project to be delivered in 2018/19. 
 

HIGHWAY WORKS PROGRAMME 
 

TB7/18 
 

Lisa Gillham, District Manager for Tunbridge Wells, KCC, introduced the 
report and noted that in addition to the road resurfacing set out at appendix A: 
the A26 was due to be resurfaced commencing on 1 August 2018 for 20 
nights; and the A264 Langton Road would be resurfaced commencing on 15 
October 2018 for 5 nights. 

Page 7

Agenda Item 4



4 

Comments were made in respect of the following matters: 
 
Resurfacing (page 65): 

 The status of micro-surfacing on Badsell Road, believed to have 
been completed, was questioned. Ms Gillham to confirm with 
Councillor Mackonochie. 

 Maidstone Road in Paddock Wood was in a poor state of repair. 
 
Carrs Corner (page 73): 

 Discussions were ongoing. A meeting between officers and 
County Councillors was being arranged and any progress would 
be reported to a future meeting. 

 Progress on improving the pedestrian island had stalled waiting for 
agreement from the Borough Conservation Officer, the delay was 
unacceptable. 

 
Langton Road Crossing: 

 The cost of traffic and pedestrian surveys to facilitate the crossing 
had been established, of which Rusthall Parish Council had 
agreed to pay half. Other funding sources were being investigated. 

 
Lighting (page 69): 

 A number of replaced light columns were yet to be fully removed 
and there needed to be a programme to complete the work. 

 
Flooding and drainage (page 67): 

 A lack of reported drainage repairs in light of the recent flooding 
around The Pantiles was concerning. The impact of repeated flash 
flooding had been high for residents and businesses. 

 Reports of blocked drains had gone unanswered and no action 
had been taken. 

 Dismissing increased flooding as an inevitable consequence of 
climate change was unacceptable and tax payers expected 
authorities to do whatever was possible, there needed to be a plan 
to tackle the problem. 

 The Leader of Kent County Council had written to residents 
indicating that there would be substantial change whereby surface 
water would be diverted to the River Grom rather than the sewers, 
this was positive action but was not reported. 

 Failure to report good news perpetuated a perception of inaction.  

 Experience showed that simple measures such as clearing drains 
and ditches made a significant impact. 

 As a result of improved maintenance following the flooding in 2017 
the drains were in reasonably good order and it was likely there 
were more systematic issues at fault which would require a 
strategic approach. 

 A meetings with the water companies was being facilitated by 
Greg Clark MP and members should ensure they were invited. 

 The report only covered the more substantial works where the 
asset value was in excess of £5k and did not include reactive 
repairs. It would not be practical to list every action and there was 
more going on than the report would suggest, however, if a 
significant scheme had been agreed it would be reasonable to 
expect its inclusion in the report. Ms Gillham to report back to 
members.  

Page 8

Agenda Item 4



5 

Combined Member Grants (page 83): 

 Ferndale handrail had been installed. 

 The location of the SID on Pembury High Street, the Pembury 
Gateways and dropped kerbs on Liptraps Lane, Sherwood had 
been confirmed. 

 
Local Growth Fund distribution (page 75): 

 £100m had been added to the Local Growth Fund by the 
Department for Transport and funding had been granted for West 
Kent, Kent Thameside and Tonbridge Regeneration. Clarification 
was sought as to what percentage would go to West Kent. Ms 
Gillham to report back to members. 

 
RESOLVED – That the report be noted. 
 

TOPICS FOR FUTURE MEETINGS 
 
TB8/18 
 

Comments were made in respect of the following items: 
 
1 – Residents’ only parking Grove Hill Road and adjacent roads, Royal 
Tunbridge Wells 
Councillor Moore, member for Park ward, had registered to speak and 
proposed the creation of a special 24/7 residents’ only parking zone on Grove 
Hill Road, Mountfield Road, Mountfield Gardens, Sutherland Road, Meadow 
Hill Road and Guildford Road. The area was a special case due to its location 
sandwiched between two parks, meaning if all spaces were filled residents 
could not spill over into neighbouring areas, and its proximity to the Calverley 
Square development where construction traffic and visitors were likely to 
push out the residents. There were 3,500 off-street parking spaces within a 
10 minute walk of the new Theatre for shoppers and theatre goers. The 
proposal was for a temporary restriction with the option to be made 
permanent following the trial. 
 
The Chairman read out correspondence received from the head of service 
covering Parking which cautiously welcomed the proposals noting that this 
type of restriction was seldom used in Tunbridge Wells but agreed that 
investigations would be commenced with a report submitted to a future 
meeting. 
 
Councillor Simmons requested that the report clarify how the restrictions 
would be enforced 24/7. 
 
Members agreed that the topic could come forward to a future meeting. 
 
2 – Congestion Kings Toll Road, Pembury 
County Councillor Barrington-King advised of continuing problems in 
Pembury around the A21, vehicles trying to avoid the congested Kippings 
Cross area were using the narrow and inappropriate roads including Kings 
Toll Road. The weight of traffic was blocking and damaging the country lanes, 
detailed statistics had been compiled by residents and forwarded to officers. 
Efforts were underway to work with sat-nav providers and support was sought 
from the Board to take proposals for new signage to Highways England. 
 
County Councillor Hamilton advised that a senior officer at Kent Highways 
was a former employee at Highways England who may be a valuable contact. 
 

Page 9

Agenda Item 4



6 

 
Parish Councillor Mackonochie suggested that a no-left turn from the A21 to 
Henwood Green Road could improve the situation. 
 
Councillor Woodward sought confirmation as to the scope of ‘topics for future 
meetings’ and whether local matters should be taken up with the Highway 
Authority directly. 
 
3 – SpeedWatch controlled 20mph zone for Culverden 
Councillor Scott, member for Culverden ward, had registered to speak and 
introduced items 3 to 5. He proposed a 20 mph zone for Culverden which 
was a busy, school-heavy area and noted that the scheme could benefit from 
police approved speed control using the latest light-touch regulations. 
 
4 – Pedestrian crossing on Upper Grosvenor Road 
Councillor Scott commented that the southern end near Meadow Road was a 
known danger spot which needed a pedestrian crossing. Suggestions of 
reducing parking restrictions to encourage on-street parking as speed breaks 
would actually decrease safety for pedestrians. 
 
5 – Driverless Vehicles 
Councillor Scott sought support for investigating the potential future of 
driverless vehicles and what measures current policies should take into 
account to ensure that any current actions were future proofed and would not 
inhibit the use of driverless technology in the future. He added that several 
companies had expressed that they were looking to invest in the technology 
to the tune of £100m and Tunbridge Wells could be an area of interest. 
Driverless vehicles were safer for cyclists than conventional vehicles so the 
right investment in cycling infrastructure could also enable driverless 
technology. Early planning could ensure any new towns or significant 
developments were designed to enable driverless vehicles, if not immediately 
then in the near future, which would dramatically reduce the number of 
parked cars and increase land values. 
 
County Councillor Hamilton endorsed the proposal and noted that near future 
technologies were likely to bring about the most significant change in road 
travel for 100 years. 
 
6 – Air Quality Monitoring 
Councillor Simmons requested that regular air quality updates be available. 
 
7 – Strategic Planning 
County Councillor Hamilton commented that the impending Local Plan was 
an opportunity to influence traffic on a strategic level as tackling individual 
roads was inefficient and likely to have consequential effects in other areas. 
She advised that a meeting with the head of service for Parking was arranged 
for January 2019 after the  outcome of the rail franchise would be known. She 
cited problems with oversized vehicles in Old Hay, Paddock Wood, as an 
example which lead her to question whether enough notice was being taken 
of traffic flows from new developments and their impact. 
 
Hilary Smith, Economic Development Manager, TWBC, advised that the 
Transport Strategy, last updated in 2015, was being reviewed as part of the 
work on the Local Plan. The current stage was the commissioning of 
consultants to undertake assessment work looking into the transport 
implications of growth across the Borough. There had been several 

Page 10

Agenda Item 4



7 

consultative meetings with the JTB Local Plan Working Group earlier in the 
year and the intention was to continue this work once the consultants had 
been appointed. 
 
Councillor Stanyer noted that the previous Transport Strategy had been made 
in the context of growth in the region of 6,000 new homes, whereas the latest 
figures suggested a need in excess of 14,000 new homes. A new robust plan 
was needed with a clear vision for the future, setting out where the growth 
would be located and integrated into existing networks, new rail transport and 
active travel modes. Current indications suggested that infrastructure 
planning was insufficient given the expected significant development. 
 
Vicki Hubert, Principal Transport Planner, KCC, commented that it was the 
purpose of the Borough’s Local Plan to address these concerns, work was 
already underway by Tunbridge Wells Borough Council’s Planning Policy 
team. Transport issues and future development would form part of the 
evidence base to inform the Plan, current efforts were focused on the 
implications of 9,500 new homes by 2023. Consultants were engaged to 
assess the current situation and overlay the predicted growth which would 
allow officers to determine what the transport implications and their mitigation 
would be. There had been and would continue to be numerous consultative 
processes, both public and internal, in the development of the Plan. 
 
Ms Smith noted that the Local Plan would be subject to the full scrutiny of the 
Council’s normal decision making processes and the JTB Local Plan Working 
Group has been established with the purpose of providing a consultative link 
with the Joint Transportation Board. Ms Hubert added that the Growth 
Strategy which formed part of the evidence for the Local Plan, had only been 
agreed by the Council on 12 June 2018, so work had only recently started on 
the Transport Strategy. 
 
Parish Councillor Mackonochie requested that parish councils be represented 
on the JTB Local Plan Working Group. 
 
8 – Drainage Infrastructure Review 
County Councillor McInroy sought to clarify whether the drainage 
infrastructure review discussed earlier in the meeting under the Highway 
Works Programme would come back with a report. 
 
The Chairman confirmed. 
 
9 – Brick Paving 
County Councillor McInroy commented that a number of red bricks had been 
removed by a developer from the pavement on Royal Chase, part of the 
Tunbridge Wells Commons Conservation Area. Advice from senior members 
at Kent County Council suggested that no remedial action could be taken. He 
sought a definitive answer as to what could be done to reinstate the paving 
and what happened to the removed bricks. He added that pavement condition 
was one of the more frequent complaints and there was a need for a 
schedule of maintenance. 
 
The Chairman agreed to consider the efficacy of bringing forward the above 
requested items and to confirm with officers which items may come forward to 
a future meeting. 
 
 

Page 11

Agenda Item 4



8 

DATE OF NEXT MEETING 
 
TB9/18 
 

The date of the next scheduled meeting was Monday 15 October 2018 at 
6pm. 
 

 
 NOTES: 

The meeting concluded at 7.40 pm. 
An audio recording of this meeting is available on the Tunbridge Wells 
Borough Council website. 

 

Page 12

Agenda Item 4



Tunbridge Wells 
Joint Transportation Board 15 October 2018 

 

Update Report 
 

Recommendation: 
 
That the report be noted 
 

 
1. INTRODUCTION 
 
1.1 This report provides an update on matters that have previously been subject to 

consideration by the Joint Transportation Board and where there has been 
substantive progress or changes to note. 

 
1.2 Any outstanding matters that are pending will not usually be included in this 

report but do continue to be monitored separately and may be subject to a 
report or inclusion in an Update Report on a future date. 

 
1.3 Any items where a decision is required will be subject to a full report. 
 
2. UPDATES 
 

Subject Update 

Pedestrian Crossing on 
Langton Road 
Crossing to complete 
pedestrian/cycle route from 
Rusthall to The Pantiles 

Arrangements for Automated Traffic Count surveys 
and NMU surveys in November / December 2018 
currently under review. 

Carrs Corner CPGRA met with Tim Read on 14 September 2018 
with a number of actions agreed and a full report to 
the JTB meeting in January 2019 

St Johns 20mph zone 
(including Currie Road) 
Investigation of safety issues 
related to rat-running 

20mph zone alterations agreed and handed over to 
contractor for installation on site. 

Microsurfacing on Badsell 
Road 
Confirmation of status 

KCC reported it in July as being programmed for the 
Summer/Autumn of 2019 but it was completed start 
of June. 

Items raised at JTB in July 2018 as ‘Topics for Future Meetings’ 

Residents’ Parking Grove 
Hill Road Area 

Report on agenda 

Congestion on Kings Toll 
Road , Pembury 
Related to existing issues at 
junction of Hastings Road 
and A21 near Kipping’s 
Cross 

Site visit undertaken by KCC Officers to assist 
specification of signage scheme. Proposals have 
been provided to Councillor Barrington-King for 
review.   

Page 13

Agenda Item 5



20mph zone for Culverden 
Proposal for new zone 

Referred to KCC 
(Information provided to Councillor McInroy) 

Pedestrian crossing on 
Upper Grosvenor Road 
Proposal for new crossing 

Referred to KCC 
(Under investigation) 

Driverless Vehicles 
Investigation of the potential 
future of driverless vehicles 
and what measures current 
policies should take into 
account to ensure that any 
current actions were future 
proofed 

Referred to TWBC Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee 

Air Quality Monitoring 
Request for regular air quality 
updates 

Referred to TWBC Cabinet 
(Monitoring of air quality is an executive function 
already undertaken by TWBC. Revised Air Quality 
Action Plan currently subject to consultation due for 
approval by Cabinet in February 2019.) 

Strategic Planning 
Need for greater planning in 
light of increased housing 

Referred to JTB Local Plan Working Group 
(Working Group to be consulted on Transport 
Strategy as part of Local Plan work) 

Flooding and Drainage 
Lack of information in the 
Highway Works Programme 
related to recent flooding 
around The Pantiles 

Update provided in Highway Works Programme 

Brick Paving 
Confirmation of status 
following removal of red brick 
paving on Royal Chase 

Response from KCC Cabinet Member confirming no 
further action possible 

 

Page 14

Agenda Item 5



Tunbridge Wells 
Joint Transportation Board 15 October 2018 
 

Resident Parking Restrictions – Grove Hill 
Road Area, Royal Tunbridge Wells 
 

Report Author / Lead Officer Nick Baldwin – Engineer 

Head of Service / Service Manager Jane Fineman – Head of Finance and 
Procurement 

Originating Authority Tunbridge Wells Borough Council and Kent 
County Council 

Final Decision Taker Kent County Council  

Exemption Non-exempt 

Classification For Recommendation 

 

Recommendation: 
 
That the Board endorses the proposed minor amendment to parking restrictions in 
the Grove Hill Road area to extend restrictions for one hour parking between 8am 
and 8pm Monday to Saturday with no return for four hours, to between 8am and 
10pm Monday to Saturday still with no return for four hours. 
 

 
1. INTRODUCTION 
 
1.1 At the July meeting of this Board, Councillor Moore requested that consideration 

be given to implementing a permit holder only restriction in streets in the Grove 
Hill Road area of Tunbridge Wells. This was prompted, in part at least, by 
concerns over anticipated parking issues arising out of the Calverley Square 
development. 

 
1.2 The roads in question are already subject to a priority parking scheme for 

resident permit holders but the suggestion is that this may no longer be 
sufficient to cater for changing circumstances. 

 
1.3 This report proposes a minor amendment to the existing restrictions in the 

Grove Hill area which should address the current concerns over evening 
parking.  

 
2. PERMIT PARKING IN TUNBRIDGE WELLS 
 
2.1 Permit parking was first introduced in the town in the late 1970’s, starting in one 

street, expanding to now cover most residential roads within the central area. 
 
2.2 The original purpose of, and justification for, restricting parking to permit holders 

during specified periods was that short term parking by shoppers in areas 
already restricted to one or two hour limited waiting was leaving little space for 
residents to park near their home during the daytime. 

Page 15

Agenda Item 6



2.3 Although the fundamental issue remains the same, it has been exacerbated in 
recent years by the residents owning more cars and therefore wanting to park 
them adjacent to their homes. 

 
2.4 The number of permits issued in a street or zone often exceeds the amount of 

available roadside parking space and, whilst this often works satisfactorily 
during the day when many permit holders are away at work, at night it can 
cause problems.  

 
2.5 Most streets in the town where permits apply have a shared use arrangement 

whereby restrictions relate either to the length of time that a car can be parked 
or the periods during which parking is allowed, in each case with an exemption 
for permit holders.  

 
2.6 A very few streets do currently have permit holder only parking, these being 

parts of Calverley Street and Garden Street (Zone G) plus South Grove. The 
latter has very restricted access and the former two streets were the original 
permit scheme implemented in the 1970’s as an experiment and largely 
unchanged since.  

 
2.7 KCC as the highway authority who are responsible for making all traffic 

regulation orders, advise against implementing permit holder only restrictions on 
the basis that the public highway should as far as possible be available for all 
and not reserved for the exclusive use of a particular group. 

 
2.8 Shared use of space has served the town well for many years by enabling 

roadside parking to be available to all for periods of time appropriate to the 
needs of a variety of users. It also ensures that spaces are not left vacant, as 
has been known to happen where restrictions are too onerous. 

 
2.9 In more recent times, it has become apparent that existing restrictions may not 

be sufficiently well balanced for current needs. To address this issue, a Parking 
Strategy for the Borough was developed and adopted during 2016. 

 
3. THE 2016 PARKING STRATEGY 
 
3.1 Following a consultation exercise during 2015, a parking strategy was formally 

adopted the following year. Statutory advertising of proposals outlined in the 
implementation programme resulted in significant objection to changes to 
restrictions in Zones A and C, as a result of which those proposals were 
withdrawn. 

 
3.2 A fundamental principle behind the proposed changes was that restrictions 

across each zone should be as uniform as possible to minimise confusion for all 
user groups. The consultation process highlighted the fact that this approach 
was not viable and that a more bespoke set of proposals needed to be 
developed to cater for a variety of issues across each zone. 

 
3.3 With that in mind, it was decided that the parking strategy could not be 

implemented in the manner envisaged. Work has recently commenced on a 
review of the strategy, with the intention being that revisions to the existing 

Page 16

Agenda Item 6



strategy will be consulted on as soon as possible, and most likely towards the 
end of 2019 or start of 2020. 

 
3.4 It is important to avoid undermining the integrity of that work, but where minor 

changes can be made to improve conditions in advance of that revised strategy, 
as in this case, it seems appropriate to take action.  

 
4. THE GROVE HILL ROAD AREA 
 
4.1 Grove Hill Road and the first five roads leading off it from its lower end are all 

situated in close proximity to the retail area south of the town centre. Apart from 
the relatively few roadside parking spaces available on Mount Pleasant Road 
and High Street, some of the first opportunities for on-street parking in this area 
are within these six streets. A drawing of the area is included at Appendix A. 

 
4.2 Currently, these six streets are subject to a restriction with parking allowed for 

up to one hour between 8am and 8pm, Monday to Saturday with an exemption 
for permit holders.  

 
4.3 The five streets leading off Grove Hill Road are all cul-de-sacs with no specific 

turning facilities at the farthest point. A consequence of this is that those looking 
for parking space and not finding any may need to reverse for a lengthy 
distance, causing a potential health and safety risk.  

 
5. MATTERS FOR CONSIDERATION 
 
5.1 Whilst the initial impression might be that a ‘permit holder only’ parking 

restriction would benefit residents in the Grove Hill Road area, there are other 
considerations that would support just extending the restriction by 2 hours 
Monday to Saturday: 

 

 There are approximately 260 dwellings within the area under consideration. 
Approximately 125 vehicles can be accommodated in existing parking bays 
and 235 permits have been issued. Help for residents to park in the 
evenings would therefore be beneficial. 

 Visitors to properties in the area can currently park for free provided they 
visit between 8pm and 8am or on a Sunday, or don’t exceed the one hour 
time limit during the restricted period. Any permit holder only scheme would 
require that visitor permits are used during restricted hours. Only 50 visitors 
permits can be issued to any household in one year because of demand. 

 The planning consent for Calverley Square requires that management plans 
provide on-site parking for operatives during the demolition and construction 
phases. This should ensure that overspill parking by contractors is 
minimised. 

 The present one hour daytime restriction would make it impractical for most 
trade vehicles since they will generally need to be parked for a whole day. 

 Public off-street parking will be available within the Calverley Square 
development and will provide parking for theatre goers. However, if the 
restrictions were to remain the same, theatre customers could benefit from 
free parking in the Grove Hill area from 7pm for the rest of the evening. This 
would tie in with show times and prevent residents from parking. 

Page 17

Agenda Item 6



 The continuation of the availability of one hour of parking during the day, 
when residents are at work, would support local businesses and families 
wishing to utilise the adjacent play park.  

 
6. SUGGESTED WAY FORWARD 
 
6.1 The Parking Strategy will be reviewed over the coming months and all relevant 

issues will be factored into any policies and proposals for change. Whilst 
acknowledging that parking issues in the town are ever changing, the review 
needs to be undertaken on a stable basis to ensure a fair outcome. 

 
6.2 Any radical change is not recommended until a revised strategy has been 

adopted or is well on its way to achieving that status. Minor changes may, 
however, be acceptable if they are likely to have little or no impact outside of a 
discrete area. 

 
6.3 With parking in residential streets by contractors vehicles being unlikely, the 

issue which already exists and could potentially worsen is that of evening 
parking by non-residents in the Grove Hill Road area. 

 
6.4 The present restriction and 8pm cut-off time means that anybody visiting the 

town in the evening could park at 7pm and then stay until 9am the next day by 
making use of the one hour limit during the restricted period. 

 
6.5 To address the possible negative effect outlined above, one solution would be 

to extend the evening restriction to finish at 10pm. This would mean that no non 
permit holder could park after 9pm and stay until the next day. Since by 9pm 
most spaces are likely to already be occupied by permit holders, it is considered 
that this would satisfactorily address the issue. 

 
6.6 An additional suggestion has been that entry signage may be appropriate to 

communicate the restrictions in advance of entering these streets, in order to 
prevent speculative searches for spaces. This will be reviewed as part of the 
Parking Strategy since it will also be relevant to other parts of the town. 

 
The process of implementation 

 
6.7 To alter the existing restrictions in the six roads detailed in this report, an 

amendment order would need to be advertised giving anybody the opportunity 
to comment or object to the proposals.  

 
6.8 After a three week consultation period, comments would be summarised and, if 

there are objections, these would be reported back to this Board. Members 
would be asked to recommend a course of action. If that recommendation is to 
proceed, Kent County Council would be requested to make the necessary traffic 
regulation order. 

 
6.9 If changes are endorsed, implementation would take approximately 6 months. 
 
 
 

Page 18

Agenda Item 6



7. CONCLUSION 
 
7.1 At present, although acknowledging concerns about parking arising out of the 

Calverley Square development, there is no particular reason for believing that it 
will have a particularly detrimental impact in the Grove Hill Road area. It is 
however already one of the areas where parking restrictions are acknowledged 
to be in need of review, especially where evening use by non-residents occurs.  

 
7.2 A compromise to deal with existing concerns would be to extend the period of 

the day during which permits are necessary for stays of longer than one hour. 
This can be viewed as a minor amendment which is very unlikely to impact 
negatively on a review of the Parking Strategy, but which does, nevertheless, 
address an identified area of concern. 

 
7.3 Members are recommended to endorse a proposal to amend parking 

restrictions in Grove Hill Road, Mountfield Road, Mountfield Gardens, 
Sutherland Road, Meadow Hill Road and Guildford Road to be one hour limited 
waiting except for permit holders between the hours of 8am and 10pm, Monday 
to Saturday with no return for four hours. 

 
 

 
Appendices to the Report 
 

 Appendix A – Plan of Grove Hill Road area. 

Page 19

Agenda Item 6



This page is intentionally left blank



 

Grove Hill Road area showing 5 side roads where permit parking restrictions currently apply 

 Present restriction is Monday to Saturday 8am to 8pm, waiting limited to 1 hour except permit holders. No return within 4 hours 

 Restriction applies to both sides of Sutherland Road, Meadow Hill Road and Guildford Road plus western side of Mountfield Road, west and north 

sides of Mountfield Gardens and parts of southern side of Grove Hill Road. 

 Western side of Mountfield Road and west plus south sides of Mountfield Gardens are subject to a single yellow line with no waiting between the 

hours of 8am and 6pm (Mountfield Road) or 9am to 5pm (Mountfield Gardens). Northern side of Grove Hill Road is subject to double yellow lines. 

P
age 21

A
ppendix A



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Tunbridge Wells 
Joint Transportation Board 15 October 2018 
 

Highway Works Programme 2018/19 
 

Report Author / Lead Officer Carol Valentine – West Kent Highway Manager 

Originating Authority Kent County Council  

Final Decision Taker Kent County Council  

Exemption Non-exempt 

Classification For Information 

 

Recommendation: 
 

 That the report be noted. 
 

 
INTRODUCTION 
 
This report provides an update and summarises schemes that have been 
programmed for delivery in 2018/19. 
 
Footway and Carriageway Improvement Schemes – see Appendix A 
  
Drainage Report – see Appendix B 
 
Street Lighting – see Appendix C 
 
Transportation and Safety Schemes – see Appendix D 
 

 Casualty Reduction Measures – see Appendix D1 

 Local Transportation Plan – see Appendix D2 

 Externally Funded Works – see Appendix D3 

 Local Growth Fund – see Appendix D4 
 
Developer Funded Works – see Appendix E 
 
Bridge Works – see Appendix F 
 
Traffic Systems – see Appendix G 
 
Combined Member Fund – see Appendix H 
 
This report is for Members’ information. 
 

 
 
 
 

Page 23

Agenda Item 7



Contact Officers: 
 
The following officers can be contacted on 03000 418181 
  
Carol Valentine West Kent Highway Manager 
Lisa Gillham District Manager 
Alan Casson  Senior Asset Manager 
Katie Moreton  Drainage & Structures Asset Manager 
Sue Kinsella Street Light Asset Manager 
Toby Butler Traffic & Network Solutions Asset Manager 
Jamie Hare Development Agreement Manager  
Emma Green Schemes Programme Manager (West) 
 

 
1.1 Legal Implications 

1.1.1 Not applicable. 

1.2 Financial and Value for Money Considerations 

1.2.1 Not applicable. 

1.3 Risk Assessment 

1.3.1 Not applicable. 

 

 

Page 24

Agenda Item 7



Appendix A – Footway and Carriageway Improvement Schemes 
 

The delivery of these schemes is weather dependent; should it prove not possible to carry out these 
works on the planned dates, new dates will be arranged and the residents will be informed by a letter 
drop to their homes. 

 

 
Machine Resurfacing – Contact Officer Mr Byron Lovell 

Road Name Parish Extent of Works Current Status 

A264 Langton Road Speldhurst 
From Junction of The 

Green to Farnham Lane 

 
Programmed 15th 

October 2018 

A26 St Johns Road Tunbridge Wells 
Speldhurst Road to 

Woodbury Park Road 

 
Completed 

 
 

Surface Treatments – Contact Officer Mr Clive Lambourne 

Micro Surfacing 

Road Name Parish Extent of Works Current Status 

Alders Road Capel The Bridge (Alders Stream) 
to Five Oak Green Road Completed 

Badsell Road Five Oak Green  Whetsted Road to Badsell 
Roundabout Completed 

Pearsons Green Road Brenchley  Churn Lane to Crook Road 

Completed 

Sychem Lane Capel  Durtnells entrance to 
Alders Road  Completed 

Hayesden Lane Bidborough / 
Tonbridge 

Penshurst Road to A21 
Overbridge Completed 

 
Cryals Road 

 
Matfield  

Section 1 - Sandhole 
Cottage to Highwood 

Section 2 - Outside Eqypt 
Farm 

Completed 

 
 

Page 25

Appendix A



Surface Dressing 

Road Name Parish Extent of Works Current Status 

Tong road Brenchley Cuckoo Lane to Tibbs 
Court Road 

 
Completed 

 

Horden road Cranbrook Pook Hill to Husheath Road  
Completed 

 

Forest road Tunbridge Wells Bayham Road to Frant 
Road  

 
Completed 

 

Free heath road Lamberhurst Metal gate to Neills Road  
Completed 

 

Cornford lane Pembury High Street to Halls Hole 
Road. 

 
Completed 

 

 

Page 26

Appendix A



Appendix B – Drainage Report 
 

Drainage Repairs & Improvements - Contact Officer Katie Lewis 
  

Road Name Parish Description of Works Current Status 

Nevil Street Tunbridge Wells 

Installation of new system to 
remove the Highway surface 
water from Southern Waters 

Sewer and create new discharge 
into the River Grom 

Works completed  

 

Page 27

Appendix B



This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix C – Street Lighting 
 

Structural testing of KCC owned street lights has identified the following as requiring replacement. A 
status of complete identifies that the column replacement has been carried out. Programme dates are 
identified for those still requiring replacement.    

 

 
Street Lighting Column Replacement – Contact Officer Sue Kinsella 
 

Road Name Parish Description of Works Status 

Stone Court Lane Pembury 1 replacement column 
Completion December 

2018 

Prospect Road Southborough 17 replacement columns 
Complete – remedials 

with 2 columns 

Lansdowne Road 
Tunbridge 

Wells 
1 replacement column 

Completion September 
2018 

Bishops Down 
Tunbridge 

Wells 
1 replacement column 

Completion September 
2018 

Broadwater Down 
Tunbridge 

Wells 
2 replacement columns 

Completion 
September/October 2018 

Eridge Road 
Tunbridge 

Wells 
1 replacement columns 

Completion 
September/October 2018 

Mount Ephraim 
Tunbridge 

Wells 
             11 replacement 
columns 

          Completion 

      September 2018 
  

Ramslye Road 
Tunbridge 

Wells 
15 replacement columns 

14 Complete remedials 
with 1 column 

  

Chieveley Drive 
Tunbridge 

Wells 
7 replacement columns 

Completion September 
2018 

  

Park Street 
Tunbridge 

Wells 
1 replacement column 

Completion September 
2018 

  

Calverley Road 
Tunbridge 

Wells 
2 replacement columns 

Completion 
September/October 2018 

  

Sandhurst Road 
Tunbridge 

Wells 
1 replacement column 

Completion 
September/October 2018 

  

Aspen Way Southborough 1 replacement column 
Completion September 

2018 
  

Blackthorn Avenue Southborough 1 replacement column 
Completion October 

2018 
  

 

Page 29

Appendix C



Crundwell Road Southborough 1 replacement column 
Completion October 

2018 
  

Norstead Gardens Southborough 3 replacement columns Complete   

North Farm Road 
Tunbridge 

Wells 
1 replacement column 

Completion 
September/October 2018 

  

Darnley Drive Southborough 2 replacement columns 
Completion October 

2018 
  

Pennington Place Southborough 1 replacement column 
Completion October 

2018 
  

St James Road 
Tunbridge 

Wells 
1 replacement column 

Completion 
September/October 2018   

Upper Grosvenor Road 
Tunbridge 

Wells 
1 replacement column 

Completion 
September/October 2018   

Silverdale Road 
Tunbridge 

Wells 
1 replacement column 

Completion 
September/October 2018   

Culverden Down 
Tunbridge 

Wells 
2 replacement columns 

Complete 
  

Glenmore Park 
Tunbridge 

Wells 
1 replacement column 

Complete 
  

Sandrock Road 
Tunbridge 

Wells 
1 replacement column 

Completion September 
2018 

  

Bishops Down Road 
Tunbridge 

Wells 
9 replacement columns 

All installed, remedials 
with 4 columns 

  

Alliance Way 
Paddock 

Wood 
8 replacement columns 

October 2018 
  

Doctor Hopes Road Cranbrook 1 replacement column Complete   

Huntingdon Close Cranbrook 1 replacement column Complete   

Cobbs Close 
Paddock 

Wood 
3 replacement columns 

Complete 
  

Granary 
Paddock 

Wood 
1 replacement column 

Completion 
September/October 2018   

Bowls Place 
Paddock 

Wood 
1 replacement column 

Complete 
  

Northdown Close 
Paddock 

Wood 
2 replacement columns 

Complete 
  

 

Page 30

Appendix C



Appendix D – Transportation and Safety Schemes 

Appendix D1 – Casualty Reduction Measures 

Casualty Reduction Schemes programme update for the Tunbridge Wells Borough. 
 

Casualty Reduction Schemes – Contact Officer Michael Hardy 

Location Parish Description of Works Current Status 

A228 Maidstone 

Road j/w Whetsted 

Road (North)  

Tunbridge Wells 

Further investigation ongoing 

following the recent application to 

reopen the Stonecastle Quarry 

Investigations to be 
completed by the end 
of October and any 
alterations to be 
undertaken before the 
end of the financial 
year  

 
Appendix D2 – Local Transportation Plan 
 
Local Transport Plan programme update for the Tunbridge Wells Borough. 

 

Local Transportation Plan – Contact Officer Michael Hardy 

Location Parish Description of Works Current Status 

Major York’s Road Tunbridge Wells Pedestrian crossing point Complete 

Carr’s 

Corner/Calverley 

Park Gardens 

Tunbridge Wells 

Investigation into improving 

pedestrian facilities. Incorporating 

speed and classification of 

vehicles to improve safety for the 

area. 

Ongoing discussions 
with local 
representatives and 
senior KCC staff  

 
Appendix D3 – Externally Funded Schemes 

 
Externally Funded Schemes programme update for the Tunbridge Wells Borough. 

 

Externally Funded Schemes – Contact Officer Michael Hardy 

Location Parish Description of Works Current Status 

21st Century Way  
Tunbridge 

Wells 

Installation of shared use 

footway/cycleway facilities.  

20mph zones to enable on-
street cycle routes in Goods 
Station Road and Oak Road; 
public consultation was 
completed on 2 July 2018. 16 
responses of support received 
and no objections. Zones 

Page 31

Appendix D



installation due Autumn/Winter 
2018/19. 
Cycle route works being 
designed for sections in 
Grosvenor & Hilbert Park and 
Dowding Way for 
implementation in 
Spring/Summer 2019. 
Public Rights of Way sections 
in Apple Tree Lane and Home 
Farm Lane being implemented 
by PROW section with 
highways link between under 
design.   

Tunbridge Wells 

Public Realm 

Phase 2 

Tunbridge 

Wells  

Public realm Improvements 

to Mount Pleasant Road and 

Civic Way. 

Scheme at design stage with 
public engagement on 22 
September. Due to start 
construction in January 2019 

 
Appendix D4 – Local Growth Fund 

 
Local Growth Fund programme update for the Tunbridge Wells Borough. 
 
The Department for Transport (DfT) added £100m to the Local Growth Fund (LGF) pot in order to fund 
Local Sustainable Transport Fund Style schemes.  KCC subsequently submitted four Local Sustainable 
Transport Fund (LSTF) capital bids 1) East Kent – A network for Growth, 2) Kent Thameside – 
Integrated door-to-door journeys and 3) West Kent – Tackling Congestion.  The fourth was for 
Tonbridge Town Centre Regeneration, which included a highway improvements scheme in the Lower 
High Street as well as additional LSTF style measures.  The objective of all of the capital bids is to 
boost economic growth by decreasing carbon emissions and reducing congestion. 
 
The Kent Thameside, West Kent and Tonbridge Town Centre Regeneration bids were all successful. 
The schemes aim to: 

 

 improve access to employment and services 

 reduce the need to travel by the private car 

 enhance pedestrian, cycle and public transport facilities 

 improve sustainable transport connections 
 

The following schemes have been submitted as part of the successful West Kent LSTF this financial 
year. 
*LSTF schemes to be updated by Development Planning* 

 
 

Scheme Status 

Tunbridge Wells A26 cycle route design – 
Installation of a cycle route either as a whole 
route or parts of a route on the A26 from 
Grosvenor Road, Tunbridge Wells to Brook 
Street, Tonbridge 

Phase 1 (Grovenor to Spedhurst Rd) nearing 

completion with road widening and installation of 

cycle lanes. Further phases under review, ongoing 

discussions with Tunbridge Wells Borough Council 

and County Members. 

Tunbridge Wells way finding signs – 
Installation of way finding monoliths to assist 
pedestrians and tourists in Tunbridge Wells 

Partnership Agreement to be signed by TWBC. 
Tender for sign design, build and install can then be 
released. 

 

Page 32

Appendix D



Appendix E – Developer Funded Works 
 

Developer Funded Works (Section 278), Contact Officer: Chris Smith 

 
Ref. 
 

Scheme location Parish Description Current status 

TW002038 Gibbet Lane Horsmonden 
New footway and junction 
to Gibbet Lane 

Completion 
certificate issued. 
Remedial works 
notified 

TW002044 

Former 
Sissinghurst 
Primary School, 
The Street 

Cranbrook & 
Sissinghurst 

New bell-mouth entrance 
to housing development 

Works completed, 
remedial works to 
drainage awaited 

TW003015 Penns Yard Pembury 

New parking bays on 
each side of Penns Yard, 
break through end of 
Penns Yard to form 
access to new housing 
development 

Final certificate 
issued 

TW003019 Benhall Mill Road 
Tunbridge 
Wells 

Two new bell-mouth 
access points into new 
development off north 
east side of Benhall Mill 
Road. 

East Sussex 
leading on the 
S278 Agreement 

TW003022 

KESH (former 
Kent & East 
Sussex Hospital), 
Culverden Park & 
Culverden Park 
Road 

Tunbridge 
Wells 

To provide improved 
access to former KESH 
from Culverden Park.  
New vehicle crossovers in 
Culverden Park Road 

Works are 
complete and 1st 
certificate issued. 

TW003031 
Greggs Wood 
Road phases 2 & 
3 

Tunbridge 
Wells 

Development access 
south of Phase 1 access. 

Final Certificate 
Issued 

TW003043 Bayham Road 
Tunbridge 
Wells 

New bell-mouth access 
Works are 
complete and 1st 
certificate issued. 

TW003045 

KESH (former 
Kent & East 
Sussex Hospital), 
Mount Ephraim 

Tunbridge 
Wells 

New access into 
development of KESH site 

Works are 
complete and 1st 
certificate issued. 

TW003049 
Hawkhurst Castle, 
Cranbrook Road 

Hawkhurst 
Realignment of 
Heartenoak Road junction 
with Cranbrook Road 

Solicitors 
instructed 

TW003053 Dowding Way 
Tunbridge 
Wells 

Reshaping existing 
garage access with 
associated works to 
carriageway and footway 

Completion 
Certificate issued. 
Maintenance 
period now started 

TW003054 
Knights Wood 
Phase 1A 

Tunbridge 
Wells 

Creation of links from the 
existing Knights Way into 
the proposed Knights 
Wood development 

Agreement signed 

 

Page 33

Appendix E



Ref. Scheme location Parish Description Current status 

TW003056 
Greggs Wood 
Road Phase 4 

Tunbridge 
Wells 

New bell-mouth access 
into development 

Agreement Signed 

TW003057 
‘Smugglers’ 
(former Bowles 
Lodge site) 

Hawkhurst 
New vehicle access south 
of old access 

Completion 
Certificate issued 

TW003061 Burslem Road 
Tunbridge 
Wells 

New vehicle crossovers 
from Burslem Road & 
Greggs Wood Road to 
permit access to new 
development 

Agreement 
signed; 
substantially 
complete 

TW003065 
Birchfield, Rye 
Road 

Hawkhurst 

New bell-mouth access 
into new housing 
development and 
adjustment of speed limit 
terminal point eastwards. 

Agreement signed 

TW003069 
Mascalls Court 
Farm, Green Lane 

Paddock 
Wood 

New bell-mouth access 
for new development 

Agreement 
signed. Works 
partially complete 

TW003079 
Standen Street, 
Iden Green 

Benenden 

Improved bell-mouth into 
development at the 
junction of Standen Street 
plus improved drainage in 
Woodcock Lane. 

Agreement signed 

TW003080 Longfield Road 
Tunbridge 
Wells 

Private development site 
west of roundabout 
between Longfield 
Road/Dowding Way 

Final Certificate 
issued 

TW003082 
Bassetts Farm, 
Goudhurst Road 

Horsmonden 

New bell-mouth access 
into housing development 
and footway linking to 
village 

Awaiting Technical 
Acceptance 

TW003083 
Lillesden House, 
Hastings Road 

Hawkhurst 
Improvements to existing 
access and new southern 
access 

Awaiting Technical 
Acceptance 

TW003086 
Spelmonden 
Farm  (A262) 

Goudhurst 
Closure of existing vehicle 
access with new access 
to the west. 

Technical 
approval granted. 
LOA signed. 
Works almost 
complete 

TW003090 
Owl's Nest, 
Tonbridge Road 

Pembury 
New bell-mouth access 
opposite Hospital 

Awaiting Technical 
Acceptance 

TW003095 
Highgate Hill, 
Hawkhurst 

Hawkhurst 
New bell-mouth access 
into development 

Agreement 
signed; 
substantially 
complete 

TW003099 

Camden Road, 
Calverley Road 
adjacent Royal 
Victoria Place 

Tunbridge 
Wells 

 Application 
received, awaiting 
technical approval 

New granite paving and 
pedestrian improvements 

Page 34

Appendix E



Ref. Scheme location Parish Description Current status 

TW003100 
Woodman Hall, 
Rye Road 

Hawkhurst 
New bell-mouth access 
into development 

Agreement signed 

TW003101 
Knights Wood, 
Phase 1A 

Tunbridge 
Wells 

Junction changes and bus 
stop improvements 

Application 
received, awaiting 
technical approval 

TW003102 
Former Dairy 
Crest depot, St 
Johns Road 

Tunbridge 
Wells 

New access to housing 
development, footway 
works and bus stop 

Agreement 
signed, works 
partially complete 

TW003107 
Home Farm, 
Penshurst Road 

Bidborough 
New bell-mouth access 
into Home Farm 
development 

Technical 
approval granted. 
LOA being 
prepared 

TW003113 
3 London Road, 
Southborough 

Southborough 
New bell-mouth access 
into development 

Agreement 
signed. Works 
partially complete 

TW003114 
Merevale House, 
London Road 

Tunbridge 
Wells 

New access from London 
Road plus footway works 

Technical 
approval granted. 
S278 Agreement 
being prepared 
 

TW003115 11 London Road 
Tunbridge 
Wells 

Extended central island 
Completion 
Certificate issued 

TW003116 
Forest Road, 
Hawkenbury 

Tunbridge 
Wells 

Highway improvements to 
include:   
Kerb realignment;                
Junction improvements;            
New refuge/island in 
Forest Way;        
Speed limit reduction;            
Better pedestrian facilities. 

Works Completed. 

TW003122 Longfield Road 
Tunbridge 
Wells 

New vehicle access into 
Travis Perkin 

Completion 
Certificate issued 

TW003123 
Union House, 
Eridge Road & 
Linden Park Road 

Tunbridge 
Wells 

Public realm 
improvements 

Agreement 
signed. Works not 
yet started. 

TW003124 
Common Road, 
Sissinghurst  

Cranbrook & 
Sissinghurst 

New crossing points 
associated with the build 
of 62 new dwellings 

Application 
received, technical 
acceptance 
granted 

TW003125 Benenden School Benenden 
Signing and lining traffic 
calming measures 

Technical 
Acceptance 
issued 

TW003125A Benenden School Benenden 
School access and 
footway works 

Works 
substantially 
complete  

TW003126 Hawkenbury 
Tunbridge 
Wells 

Various junction 
improvements to 
Maryland Road, 
Hawkenbury Road & 
Forest Road 

Application 
received, technical 
approval granted 

Page 35

Appendix E



Ref. Scheme location Parish Description Current status 

TW003127 
Pinewood 
Gardens 

Southborough 
New bell-mouth access 
and footway alterations 

Letter of 
Agreement 
signed. Works not 
yet started 

TW003131 
Station Business 
Park, Gills Green 

Hawkhurst 
Widening of entrance 
access 

Awaiting Technical 
Acceptance 

TW003133 
Goods Station 
Road 

Tunbridge 
Wells 

Convert builders’ yard to 
new housing with 
accesses and footway  

Technical 
Acceptance 
issued, 

 

Page 36

Appendix E



Appendix F – Bridge Works 
 

Bridge Works – Contact Officer Katie Moreton 

Road Name Parish Description of Works Current Status 

Goudhurst Road 
Goudhurst / 
Horsmonden 

Stone Bridge No.12 
Parapet Repairs 

 

Road closure 13 to 24 
August 2018. 

 

Page 37

Appendix F



This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix G – Traffic Systems 
 
There is a programme of scheduled maintenance to refurbish life expired traffic signal equipment 
across the county based upon age and fault history. The delivery of these schemes is dependent upon 
school terms and holiday periods; local residents, businesses and schools will be informed verbally and 
by a letter drop of the exact dates when known.  

 

Traffic Systems - Contact Officer: Toby Butler 
  

Location Description of Works Current Status 

No traffic signal refurbishment work being 
carried out this year 

   
 

 

Page 39

Appendix G



This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix H – Combined Member Fund 
 
Combined Member Grant programme update for the Tunbridge Wells District 
 
The following schemes are those which have been approved for funding by both the relevant Member 
and by the Director of Highways and are up to date as of 17th September 2018. 
 
The details below are for Highway Schemes only and do not detail contributions Members have made 
to other groups such as Parish or District Councils. 
 
More detail on their schemes can be accessed by each Member via the online database or by 
contacting their Highway Project Manager.  
 
2018/19 Combined Member Grant Highway Schemes 
 
Paul Barrington-King – Tunbridge Wells East 

Scheme Cost Status 

Ferndale handrail  - Complete 

SID installation, High Street  Pembury 6,625 Awaiting confirmation 

Gateway features, Pembury - Awaiting product confirmation 

Dropped kerbs, Liptraps Lane  Installation to be completed 
December 2018 

Kippings Cross advisory signs  - Application to be submitted 

 
 

Sean Holden - Cranbrook 

Scheme Cost Status 

   

 
 

Sarah Hamilton – Tunbridge Wells Rural 

Scheme Cost Status 

Paddock Wood Primary School investigations TBC Feasibility under review 

 
 

Catherine Rankin – Tunbridge Wells South 

Scheme Cost Status 

Banner Farm Estate feasibility investigation TBC Designs undergoing safety audit. 
Final report to be completed 

November 2018 

St Marks School traffic alteration TBC Awaiting confirmation 

 
 

Peter Oakford – Tunbridge Wells North 

Scheme Cost Status 

Installation of vehicle activated sign on Speldhurst 
Road  

- Complete  

Additional roundels through St Johns 20mph zone 2,000 Programmed installation 
December 2018 

Southborough Primary School traffic management 
investigations 

3,441 Designs undergoing safety audit. 
Final report to be completed 

November 2018 

Page 41

Appendix H



 
James McInroy – Tunbridge Wells West 

Scheme Cost Status 

Biddborough speed alteration investigation TBC Awaiting traffic survey quotes – 
application imminent  

 

Page 42

Appendix H



Guidance on Topics for Future Meetings 
 
 
Background 
 
Each JTB agenda includes an item titled “Topics for Future Meetings”, the purpose 
of which is to provide an opportunity for members of the Board (and others at the 
Chairman’s discretion) to raise relevant transport issues. 
 
The JTB is governed by the KCC and TWBC JTB Agreement which states that, “The 
Access to Information principles shall be applied to the JTB as if it were a Council 
committee.” Consequently, there cannot be any substantive debate or decisions on 
any topic unless it is included on the agenda. Failure to comply with the Access to 
Information Regulations could render the recommendations or any decisions made 
on the basis of the recommendations open to challenge. 
 
The JTB is a consultative body and has no delegated powers. Nor does it have any 
resources to conduct its own investigative work. The JTB may make 
recommendations but cannot make any binding decisions or commit either KCC or 
TWBC to a course of action that incurs financial cost or the use of resources. 
 
Members may raise any issues directly with the responsible authority at any time and 
this is often the most effective method of resolving local issues. 
 
 
Procedure 
 
Where a matter of particular local importance arises that is not related to an existing 
work stream the JTB may request that it be discussed at one of its meetings. In order 
to comply with the Access to Information Regulations it is important to ensure that 
the issue is notified and reported correctly. Therefore the following convention has 
been established. 
 

1. Members of the Board should raise any items they wish to discuss with the 
Chairman and the Democratic Services Officer in writing as soon as 
possible before the meeting and no later than 4pm on the working day 
before the meeting. This will enable the Officers to advise the Chairman on 
the most appropriate course of action. 

 
2. The Chairman will then announce the received items at the meeting under 

the appropriate agenda item and suggest a course of action. No items 
should be raised at the meeting without due notice. 

 
3. There cannot be any substantive debate or discussion on the issue, the 

Board may only confirm the course of action to be taken. 
 

4. If a discussion at a future meeting is agreed, the item will be listed in the 
agenda of the subsequent meeting. Any such discussion cannot result in 
any binding decisions. 

Page 43

Agenda Item 8



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	4 Minutes of the meeting dated 16 July 2018
	5 Update Report
	6 Resident Parking Restrictions - Grove Hill Road Area, Royal Tunbridge Wells
	6 Appendix A - Plan of Grove Hill Road Area

	7 Highway Works Programme
	7 Appendix A - Footway and Carriageway Improvement Scheme
	7 Appendix B - Drainage Report
	7 Appendix C - Street Lighting
	7 Appendix D - Transportation and Safety Schemes
	7 Appendix E - Developer Funded Works
	7 Appendix F - Bridge Works
	7 Appendix G - Traffic Systems
	7 Appendix H - Combined Member Fund

	8 Topics for Future Meetings

